
BCP Council Offices, Town Hall, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Children's Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

Date: Monday, 29 March 2021 at 6.00 pm 

Venue: Virtual Meeting 
 

Membership: 

Chairman: 
Cllr R Burton 

Vice Chairman: 
Cllr L Lewis 

Cllr E Coope 
Cllr B Dunlop 
Cllr N Geary 
 

Cllr J Kelly 
Cllr S Moore 
Cllr L Northover 
 

Cllr S Phillips 
Cllr Dr F Rice 
Cllr R Rocca 

Parent Governor Co-opted Representatives 
Mr P Martin, Miss E Hall (Academy) and Mr S Welch (Academy) 

Diocesan Co-Opted Representatives  
Mr M Saxby 
 
Youth Parliament Representatives 
Nathan Collins, Sarah Lockard, Adaya Brandon and Georgia Grogan 
 

All Members of the Children's Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee are summoned to attend 
this meeting to consider the items of business set out on the agenda below. 
 

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following link: 
 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=4280 
 

If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please contact: 
Louise Smith, louise.smith@bcpcouncil.gov.uk or email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office by email at press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
  
This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n

lin
e
 a

n
d

 

o
n
 t

h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 

 
GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 19 March 2021 
 



 

 anne.brown@bcpcouncil.gov.uk  

 

mailto:anne.brown@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors. 
 

 

2.   Substitute Members  

 To receive information on any changes in the membership of the 
Committee. 
 
Note – When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a 
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their 
nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their 
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute 
member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the 
front of this agenda should be used for notifications. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interests  

 Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this 
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 
 

 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes 5 - 10 

 To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Meeting held on 
24 February 2021. 
 

 

a)   Action Sheet 11 - 16 

5.   Public Issues  

 To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in 
accordance with the Constitution, which is available to view at the following 
link: 
  
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Inf
o=1&bcr=1 
  
The deadline for the submission of a public question is 4 clear working days 
before the meeting. 
The deadline for the submission of a public statement is midday the 
working day before the meeting. 
The deadline for the submission of a petition is 10 working days before the 
meeting. 
 

 

6.   BCP 's Members of Youth Parliament Summary Report 17 - 18 

 To receive an update from the Members of Youth Parliament on their work 
over the past year 
 
 

 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1


 
 

 

7.   Report on Children not in education, employment, and training to 
include details on how the Pupil Premium is being spent 

19 - 26 

 This report outlines the approach we are planning for children not in 
education, employment, or training in BCP, in particular to young people in 
care and care leavers, but also to all young people in the BCP area. 
 

 

8.   Children's Services Improvement Journey – Update 27 - 32 

 To provide an update on Children’s Services Improvement Journey 
following the Ofsted ‘focused visit’ in October 2020. 
 

 

9.   Portfolio Holder Update  

 To receive a verbal update from the Portfolio Holders on any update items 
to include a Covid Update. 
 

 

10.   Items for Information  

 The following item will be circulated to the Committee Members following 
this Committee for Information Only. 

 BCP Schools and Providers Preparation for Return to Wider 
Opening from March 8th 2021 

 Education Performance and Exams 2020 
 Send Strategy 2021 – 2024 

 Send Improvement Plan  
 

 

11.   Forward Plan 33 - 42 

 To consider the Committee’s Forward Plan. 
 

 

12.   Dates of Future Meetings  

 To note the dates of future Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees as follows: 

 8 June 2021 

 27 July 2021 

 21 September 2021 

 23 November 2021 

 25 January 2022 

 22 March 2022 
 
All meetings will commence at 6pm and venues to be confirmed. 
 
 

 

 
No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that 
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes. 

 



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 24 February 2021 at 6.00 pm 
 

Present:- 

Cllr R Burton – Chairman 

Cllr L Lewis – Vice-Chairman 

 
Present: Cllr E Coope, Cllr B Dunlop, Cllr N C Geary, Cllr J Kelly, Cllr S Moore, 

Cllr L Northover, Cllr S Phillips, Cllr Dr F Rice, Cllr R Rocca   
 

Co-Opted 
Members: 

Mr P Martin, Parent Governor Representative 
Mr S Welch, Academy Parent Governor Representative 
Mr M Saxby, Diocesan Representative 
N Collins and G Grogan, Members of the Youth Parliament 
 
 

 

 
132. Apologies  

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

133. Substitute Members  
 
There were no substitutes. 
 

134. Declarations of Interests  
 
Councillor Moore declared an interest in Agenda Item 6 Children and 
Young People’s Partnership Plan 2021-24 as a Trustee of Canford Heath 
Infant and Middle School Teacher Trust, due to the input pupils of the Trust 
had had. 
 

135. Confirmation of Minutes  
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Children’s Services Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 26 January 2021, having been previously 
circulated, be signed by the Chair and confirmed as a correct record. 
 

136. Action Sheet  
 
There were no comments on the Action Sheet. 
 

137. Public Issues  
 
There were no public issues received. 
 
 
 

5

Agenda Item 4



– 2 – 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
24 February 2021 

 
138. Children and Young People's Partnership Plan 2021 - 2024  

 
The Independent Chair of the Children and Young People’s Partnership 
Board (C&YPPB) presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated 
to each Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'A' to these 
Minutes in the Minute Book. 
 
The draft BCP Children and Young People’s Plan had been developed 
by the BCP C&YPPB, the successor body to the previous Learning 
Partnership Board. The difference was to focus on all issues for 
children, not just education and to a lesser extent, children’s social care.  
 
Having a plan in place was a requirement placed on BCP by the Local 
Government Reorganisation process so in that sense it is a plan required 
by Government of us. 
The draft Plan sets out the proposed strategic priorities for partnership 
action to improve outcomes for BCP’s children and young people and to 
help them achieve their potential. It was consistent with existing BCP 
policy about improving child outcomes  
 
Central to this was that the Council played its part in the Partnership to 
help BCP’s children and young people to be “fulfilled, happy, included, 
and resilient”.  
 
A copy of the draft plan could be found at Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
The draft Plan had been subject to public consultation during the month 
of January 2021.  
 
This Plan, when finalised, would be championed by the multi-agency BCP 
C&YPPB. An action plan would be an integral part of the final document. 
This would be monitored through the Board. 
 
The Committee discussed the Report and comments were made, including: 
 

 The Committee was generally very positive about the Plan, the 
content, format, its accessibility, and ambition were all really 
welcomed  

 A Member of the Youth Parliament (MYP) advised that they had 
considered the Plan and felt it was very accessible to young people 
however, felt that some of the actions highlighted under the four 
priorities could be better positioned under other priorities.  The Chair 
of the C&YPPB requested a meeting with the MYPs to go through 
the Plan in more detail to gain their insight further. Action.  

 In response to a query about whether consideration had been given 
to a longer term plan, say ten year, the Chair of the C&YPPB 
highlighted that it was felt a three year plan was appropriate at this 
time and especially in relation to Children and Young People where 
the context for their lives can change so fast. 

 In response to a query about where the four priorities had come from 
and in particular whether they were relevant from a child or young 

6



– 3 – 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
24 February 2021 

 
person’s perspective, the Chair of the C&YPPB advised that they 
had  consulted with as many children as they could given the current 
pandemic and capacity issues and those were the four words that 
had been decided to be most appropriate based on the feedback.  

 A Committee Member referred to the different summaries and in 
particular the reference that ‘it would be targeted at the 
disadvantaged’, it was highlighted that that was not considered a 
protected characteristic and so should read instead that ‘it was 
addressing inequalities’ 

 A Committee Member welcomed the links demonstrated between 
the high number of exclusions to the 16/17-year olds young people 
currently in care and felt that some input from the Police and youth 
work could be linked in at that point. 

 A Member welcomed the longer-term priorities and enquired how it 
was proposed that these would be achieved?  In response the Chair 
of the C&YPPB advised that the Children’s Services Improvement 
Plan highlighted apprentices for Care Leavers as a priority with the 
Chief Executive taking the lead.  The Committee was also advised 
that the Council would be taking a leading role and offering in house 
apprenticeships where appropriate.  Exclusions were also being 
targeted by seeking to secure an agreement with all local schools to 
reduce them across BCP, with a multi-agency conference being 
planned to get all of the agencies on board to provide as much 
support as they could to schools to achieve this ambition.   

 In response to a concern that the levels of bullying highlighted 
seemed high, the Committee was reassured that there were already 
a number of anti-bullying policies in place, but the plan aimed to use 
multi-agency provision to help target interventions by considering 
what had been successful and what hadn’t 

 A Member queried the figures relating to a child who would be living 
with a family with abuse detailed in the Plan and that there were two 
different figures which needed checking. Action.  

 There was a large amount of discussion surrounding the references 
to the Economy within the Plan with a Member advising that new 
research had suggested that there was not a strong correlation 
between high levels of Gross Domestic Product (GDP) and child 
happiness.  Following the discussions, the Chair of the C&YPPB 
advised that the reference within the Plan was focusing on preparing 
children and young people for work, helping them to become 
productive and creative adults by working closely with the colleges, 
schools and businesses 

 The Chair of the Committee referred to the mental ill health 
reference within the Plan and requested it be amended/softened so it 
did not look like mental health was being blamed  

 The Committee appreciated the opportunity to contribute towards the 
Plan and acknowledged that it detailed some large pieces of work 
which needed to be undertaken.  The Committee stressed the 
importance of ensuring that the work was carried out by building 
links with other agencies and strategies to ensure all the aspirations 
within the Plan were achieved and delivered.  

7



– 4 – 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
24 February 2021 

 

 The Chair of the Committee referred to the dashboard being created 
to monitor progress and advised that the Committee would welcome 
the opportunity to consider it at an appropriate time. Action. 

 The Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Covid Resilience, Schools 
and Skills as well as her role as  Chair of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board concluded that all the strategies were linked and the Board 
would be responsible for delivering some of the aspirations once 
adopted. 

 
The Chairman summed up as follows: 
 

 The Committee thoroughly enjoyed considering and providing input 
into the draft Plan 

 The Chair of the C&YPP was going to meet with the MYPs to 
consider the actions detailed under the four priorities  

 A request to ensure protected characteristics were given 
consideration/highlighted 

 The aspirations surrounding Apprenticeships 

 Discussions surrounding the local economy and links with children 
and young people 

 The Importance of ensuring close links to other BCP strategies. 
 
RECOMMENDED that the views and considerations of the Children’s 
Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee be taken into account 
when the plan is considered by Cabinet and supported by Full 
Council. 
 

139. Covid - Children's Services  
 
The Interim Corporate Director, Children Services advised that this was a 
verbal update and informed the Committee of information, including: 
 

 Schools would be returning on 8 March and Children’s Services was 
working with the Headteachers to manage the return of all schools 
across the BCP.   

 The challenges were highlighted including the logistics of testing the 
secondary school pupils.   

 The Interim Corporate Director advised that she would circulate 
some information received from the DfE to the Committee for its 
information. Action. 

 It was highlighted that the clinically extremely vulnerable groups 
were still be requested to shield and the impact of this on teachers 
and staff was still being considered. 

 The Committee was advised that the Governments position on 
exams was yet to be announced.   
 

The Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Covid Resilience, Schools and 
Skills addressed the Committee and provided a verbal update which 
included the following information: 
 

8



– 5 – 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
24 February 2021 

 

 The Committee was advised of findings released by Ofsted in 
November 2020 on the Impact of Covid on Children and Young 
People when considering social care settings, early years, and 
schools 

 It was noted that with the planned return to school, children would 
again become more visible to BCP and Children’s Services, ensuring 
evaluations of the impacts locally could be undertaken however, 
there was no reason to suggest that it would not echo the national 
findings of Ofsted 

 The Portfolio Holder referred to some research which had been 
undertaken regarding maternal mental health during the pandemic 
and the need to ensure mothers of young children were sighted and 
supported, if required. 

 The mental health of children and young people was highlighted and 
it was advised that those who already experienced emotional health 
wellbeing may have suffered more, an acknowledgment of reduced 
physical activity, and the possible impact of long Covid on parents 
and carers. 

 One positive was the outcome of an Office for National Statistics 
Survey which showed that the Covid impact on mental health of 16 
to 19 year olds was less than other adult age groups 

 The Committee was also advised of need to ensure support for 
children and young people was included within the economic 
recovery local plan 

 The Portfolio Holder summed up the impact Covid had had on SEND 
children whose routine and wider support structure from families, 
services and practitioners had been impacted and it was advised 
that if those relationships had been strong prior to lockdown, then 
the support had continued where possible but if not, then the 
opposite could have occurred. 
 

The Committee discussed the verbal update and in response to a query 
about the proposed catch up opportunities over the summer holidays, the 
Committee was advised that this was only one of many discussions being 
undertaken in Government.  The Committee was reassured that any 
measures taken within BCP would be led by what the children needed and 
that a plan and clear vision to support the children and parents moving 
forward was being formed. 
 
The Chair thanked the Interim Directors, Children’s Services and the 
Portfolio Holder for their verbal update. 
 

141. Forward Plan  
 
The Chair explained to the Committee the reasons why the item on the 
Bournemouth Learning Centre – Capital Investment to expand SEND 
provision for Longspee Special School had been removed from the agenda 
for this meeting and that it would come back once it was ready to be 
considered by the Committee and Cabinet. 
 

9



– 6 – 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
24 February 2021 

 
The Committee was advised that an Information only report would be 
circulated via email on the BCP Children’s Services Complaints and 
Representations Annual Report 2019-2020. 
 

142. Dates of Future Meetings  
 
The dates of future meetings were noted. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 7.30 pm  

 CHAIRMAN 

10



ACTION SHEET – BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE CHILDREN’S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

Actions arising from Committee meeting: 10 March 2020 

8 BCP Children’s 
Services Self-
Assessment 
January 2020 

Decision Made: 
 
That the following information/data be included in future 
reports: Key Stage 5 attainment levels and a comparative 
local authority’s data and an acronym sheet. 
 
A request was again made that an acronym sheet be 
included in any future reports. 
 
Actioned – Service Directors advised 
 

 
 
To enable Councillors 
to have more in-depth 
information. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
N/A 

 
Actions arising from Committee meeting: 28 July 2020 
 

 90. The BCP Children 
in Care and Care 
Experienced 
Young People 
Improvement 
Journey 

Decision Made: 
 
Permanence Planning training on the processes used to 
be arranged for Committee Members 
 
Action – Service Director to arrange with Dem 
Services 

 

To enable Councillors 
to have more in-depth 
understanding of the 
processes used. 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Actions arising from Committee meeting: 22 September 2020 
 

105. 91. Child Exploitation Decision Made: 
 

  

11

A
genda Item

 4a



Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

Data, trends and comparisons, including information on 
County Lines to be provided to the Committee. 
 
Actioned – Officers aware, work is ongoing and will be 
shared with Committee when available 
 
Decision Made: 
 
Further information, data and progress relating to knife 
crime to be provided to the Committee. 
 
Actioned – Officers aware, work is ongoing and will be 
shared with Committee when available 
 
Decision Made: 
 
The profile being used to monitor progress to include a 
dashboard of trends to be provided to the Committee. 
 
Actioned – Officers aware and the dashboard is being 
worked on and will be shared with the Committee 
soon 

To ensure that Cllrs 
are aware of the 
nature and extent of 
issues in the area of 
Child Exploitation  
 
To ensure that Cllrs 
are sighted on the 
impact of measures 
that have been 
introduced to respond 
to these challenges  

 
Actions arising from Committee meeting: 1 December 2020 
 

112. 92. Action Sheet Decision Made: 
 
Information be shared with Committee Members regarding 
children carrying knives. 
 
Action: 

To enable Councillors 
to have more in-depth 
understanding of this 
issue. 
 
 

 

12



Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

114 93. Item requested by 
a member of 
public for 
scrutiny 

Decision Made: 
 
Share the Local Government Peer Review with Committee 
Members. 
 
Action – Officers aware 
 
Decision Made: 
 
Chairman discuss with Officers to focus on an area for 
Scrutiny and email to Committee Members. 
 
Action – Chair and Officers aware 
 

 
To enable Councillors 
to have more in-depth 
information. 
 
 
 
 
 
To enable Councillors 
to decide on an area 
to focus scrutiny  
 

 

117 94. Children’s 
Services 
response to 
Covid-19 

Decision Made: 
 
Focus on inequalities and reducing LAC not on roll or 
education in February report on NEETs 
 
Action – Officers aware 

To enable Councillors 
to have more in-depth 
information. 
 

 

118 95. Forward Plan Decision Made: 
 
Briefing to be arranged between Cllr Rice and the 
Corporate Director regarding the Childcare Sufficiency 
Review 
 
Action – to be arranged 
 
Decision Made: 
 
An update on Child Exploitation, County Lines and 

To enable Councillors 
to have more in-depth 
information. 
 

 

13



Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  
*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 
recommendations 
are made to other 
bodies) 

numbers of Children in Care be provided to Committee 
Members 
 
Actioned – to be circulated to Committee Members 
 

 
26 January 2021 

4a 96. Action Sheet Decision Made: 
 
The Chair requested the outstanding actions - Report on 
children carrying knives and Local Government Peer 
Review be completed. 
 
Action – Officers aware. 
 
 

To enable Councillors 
to have more in-depth 
information. 
 

 

 
24 February 2021 

6 97. Children and 
Young People’s 
Partnership Plan 
2021-24 

Decision Made: 
 
The Chair of the Children’s and Young People’s 
Partnership Board (CYPPB) to meet with the Members of 
the Youth Parliament to go through the Plan and gain their 
insight 
 
Actioned – meeting occurred on 2 March 2021 
 
Decision Made: 
 
To check the figures relating to a child who would be living 
with a family with abuse highlighted within the Plan. 

 
 
To ensure the MYPs 
views are taken into 
account. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To ensure the content 
of the Plan is clear. 

 

14



 
Actioned – The Chair of the CYPPB advised that 
explanations would be added to the Plan 
 
Decision Made: 
 
A request from the Chair of the Committee to consider the 
dashboard being created at an appropriate time. 
 
Actioned - The dashboard to be produced as part of 
the action planning process by the summer and 
could be considered by the Committee at an 
appropriate time. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Once created to 
ensure the Committee 
maintains an 
oversight of progress. 
 

 98. Covid – 
Children’s 
Services Verbal 
Update 

Decision Made: 
 
The Interim Corporate Director, Children’s Services to 
circulate information received from the Department for 
Education (DfE). 
 
Actioned – circulated to the Committee on 9 March 
2021 
 

 
 
To enable the 
Committee to be 
updated on 
information received. 

 

  

15



T
his page is intentionally left blank

16



BCP ‘s Members of Youth Parliament Summary Report 

On 27th February 2020 we were elected as the first MYPs for BCP. And what a year 

it has been! 

Oblivious to what was ahead, we decided upon our campaigns, 

 The Environment  

 Knife Crime 

 PSHE 

 Mental Health 

Given the circumstances we feel that we have adapted well and utilised online 

resources well to continue our work to a high standard.  

An overview (no scrutiny please): 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Grab your reader’s attention with a 

great quote from the document or 

use this space to emphasize a key 

point. To place this text box 

anywhere on the page, just drag it.] 

During the summer, we held a 

series of workshops which 

resulted in a Youth Summit on 

issues around the environment. 

These were well attended by 

young people, officers and 

elected members and generated 

enthusiasm to continue this work 

together. 

One outcome from the Youth 

Summit was to rewrite parts of 

the BCP Climate Change Action 

Plan in a more accessible way for 

young people to understand. We 

achieved this through 

consultation with other young 

people on our weekly Youth 

Forum.  

Due to the lockdown, we thought 

it was crucial to provide an outlet 

for young people in order to help 

them feel less alone. This idea 

became a weekly newsletter, 

which we are still continuing to do 

a monthly basis. It promotes a 

variety of mental health 

organisations, and tips for stress 

management and wellbeing. In 

addition to this we helped spread 

messages through social media. 

We have collaborated with a 

group of young people and 

mental health professionals to 

create a mental health resource 

to be used in classrooms (please 

see appendix examples). 

Temporarily named stress cards, 

they tackle a range of issues that 

both students and teachers face. 

Despite being a large and 

daunting project, the end is now 

in sight, and we plan to have 

them in schools by April. 

Our Successes 

17

Agenda Item 6



 

Other outcomes and learning… 

 Awards – links with Dorset Carbon Neutral / Bournemouth University  

 Conversations about Stour Valley 

 Voice of young people at Overview and Scrutiny  

 PSHE 

 Knife Crime 

 Child Poverty  

 Attended UK Youth Parliament Annual Youth Conference  

 Attended South West Regional meetings including working groups on Knife 

Crime and the Environment  

 Met with several senior officers and elected members of a range of issues 

 

In 2021/2022…. 

Due the impact of Covid the British Youth Council requested our term was extended 

until 28th February 2022. 

We have decided to focus our year on, 

 Launching the stress cards 

 Developing and piloting Secondary School Environment Awards 

 Developing a new Homelessness campaign. This topic was voted for at a 

recent BCP online youth debate  

 Continuing to champion the voice of young people in BCP to elected 

members and key decision makers 

We would like to thank all members of the Children’s Services O&S Panel for their 

continued support and looking forward to contributing over the next year. 

Nathan Collins, Sarah Lockard, Georgia Grogan and Adaya Brandon. 

  

  

  

  

  

 

18



CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Report on Children not in education, employment and training 
to include details on how the Pupil Premium is being spent 

Meeting date  29 March 2021 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  1. The 2016 DFE Statutory Guidance for Participation of 

young people in education, employment and training 

states the following: 

 

a) Local Authorities must promote the effective 
participation in education and training of 16 and 17 
year olds in their area; 

b) Local Authorities are required to identify young 
people not participating so that they can ensure that 
these young people get the support they need; 

c) Local Authorities are expected to act on any 
information they receive about a young person who 
has dropped out; contacting them at the earliest 
opportunity and supporting them to find an 
alternative place in education, training or 
employment with training that leads to relevant 
regulated qualifications; 

d) Local Authorities should provide strategic leadership 
in their areas to support participation in education, 
training and employment; 

 

2. The Council, as corporate parents, also have a duty to 

provide personal advisors and pathway plans for care 

leavers.  Just as any good parent would our role does not 

stop at 18 and we must support care leavers and have 

high aspirations for all young people who need support 

with this complex transition; 

 

3. This report outlines the approach we are planning in BCP 

in particular to those young people in care and those who 

are care leavers but also to all young people in the BCP 

area through our system leadership role 

 

19

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

I. Support is given to the development of a 
comprehensive universal NEETS offer for young 
people in BCP between the age of 16 and 24 who 
need education, employment and/or training. 

II. Vulnerable young people including children in 
care and care leavers are made a bespoke offer. 

III. A re-engagement programme for those young 
people that are NEET is developed and 
implemented 

 

Reason for 
recommendations 

To ensure that a clear local offer of the opportunities and support 
available to young people in BCP is publicised, allowing young 
people to re-engage with education, employment or training, 
allowing young people in BCP to go on to lead fulfilled lives and to 
reach their potential. This is in line with one of the strategic 
objectives that elected members have already supported through 
the 2021/24 Children and Young People’s Partnership Plan. 

  

20



Portfolio Holder(s):  Councillor Nicola Greene, Portfolio Holder for Covid Resilience, 
Public Health and Education  

Corporate Director  Elaine Redding – Corporate Director – Children’s Services   

Report Authors Kelly Twitchen Head Teacher Virtual School and College 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Recommendation/Decision/Update and Information 
Title:  

Background 

4. Since November 2020 the remit of the Virtual School (VS) changed to include the 

oversight of year 12 and 13 students in the care of BCP.  The VS now monitors 

education from the term after a child becomes 2 years old up until the end of year 13 

and is now known as the Virtual School and College.  

 

5. Children in Care and Care Leavers are not always able to follow a clear route when 

preparing for adulthood.  Their life experiences, current circumstances and mental 

health will often impact on their preparation.  Part of this preparation is the journey to 

employability which for some young people can present challenges especially if they 

have not achieved outcomes in line with their peers which puts them at a distinct 

disadvantage to other young people in the employment marketplace.  

 

6. Evidence shows that once someone becomes NEET, it can become far harder for 

them to re-engage with the education system or the employment network.  Periods of 

inactivity and unemployment in early adulthood have been shown to have lasting 

negative effects on future employment prospects and earnings, as well as an 

increased risk of poor health and other adverse lifetimes experiences. 

 

 Data for NEET and EET 

7. Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET) refers to young people aged 

between 16 and 24.  Education is considered to be a course of 12 hours or above, 

training includes those young people undertaking supported internships, traineeships 

or apprenticeships and employment is considered to be any paid work either full or 

part time. The data below shows the NEET picture for all young people in BCP not 

just Children in Care (CIC) and care leavers. The data shows the importance of 

focusing on care leavers initially, due to their above average rate of NEET compared 

with other local authorities: 

 

 BCP South West National 

Care leavers 18-24 years 
old NEET in 2020 

29% 39% 39% 

Care leavers 16-17 years 4.2% 2.9% 2.7% 

21



old NEET in 2020 

 

 All young people in 
Year 12 and 13 in 
BCP at the end of 
December 2019 

All young people in 
Year 12 and 13 in 
BCP at the end of 
Quarter 3 2020/21 

NEET 3.1% 4.2% 

Not known 1.5% 1.4% 

In education 91.8% 91.9% 

Employment or 
training 

3.6% 2.5% 

 

 

   

 Virtual College (Year 12 and 13) as at  March 
2021 

Total 170 

Children in care 65% 

Care leavers 35% 

EET 66% 

NEET 34% (of which 30% are care leavers) 

 

 

 

8. There are increased numbers of young people not in education, employment and 
training across BCP compared to last year. We need to improve this and ensure 
that all our young people in care and those that are care leavers have every 
opportunity possible to re-engage with education, employment and training 
whatever their need or situation. 

 
9. The young people in the Virtual College in education, employment and training 

are undertaking a range of qualifications both vocational and A-level and are in a 
range of settings including sixth form provision in secondary schools, further 
education colleges, army college, specialist provision and alternative provision. 

Current Actions 

10. We are working pro-actively to create an internal support directory that will support 

NEETs in BCP by showing the range of opportunities available and how to access 

them.  This will be part of a universal offer to all young people in BCP who are NEET 

but will allow added support for those who are in care or are care leavers. 

 

11. The VSC Head Teacher and the interim Corporate Director of Children’s Services are 

working together to offer a range of work experience and apprenticeship 

22



opportunities for CIC and care leavers in service areas across BCP Council.  A 

survey has been sent out to CIC and care leavers in years 11,12 and 13 asking if 

they would be interested in work experience and if so in which areas. We have had a 

positive response to this survey so far. This is a key area in the Children’s Services 

Improvement Programme and Action Plan. 

 

12. BCP Council Children in Care (CiC) & Care experienced Young People (CeYP) 

employability support pathways have been drafted by services across the council and 

will be presented at the next internal Performance Surgery.  Titles of these pathways 

are below: 

 

a) Pathway 1- Pre-Work experience. For those of all ages not yet ready to 
engage in work experience  

b) Pathway 2- Work experience. For those of all ages ready to engage 

c) Pathway 3 - Traineeships – for those of all ages post year 11 ready to engage 
and eligible for the programme. 

d) Pathway 4 – Supported Internships – for those of all ages post year 11 ready 
to engage and eligible for the programme. 

e) Pathway 5 - Apprenticeships – for those of all ages post year 11 ready to 
engage and eligible for the programme. 

f) Pathway 6 – Supported employment – for those of all ages post year 13 
ready to engage and eligible for employment. 

 

These training and employment offers will be with BCP Council initially. 

 

13. Post 16 Virtual College education officers will be based at Bournemouth and Poole 

College, our largest post 16 provider, once a week to support young people as well 

as staff.  This will allow officers to develop relationships with young people, 

strengthen relationships with college staff and intervene early at any signs that a 

young person may become NEET. 

 

Conclusions 

 

14. A clear local offer for our young people that are NEET or at risk of NEET needs to be 

developed further and publicised.  There are resources within BCP Council that can 

be utilised, but some external resources will also need to be accessed and made 

accessible.  

 

15. The offer will need to be flexible in order to and offer support that will allow those 

young people who are not ‘work ready’ to become so, ensuring that the young person 

is equipped with the skills that will be required to start work, e.g., CV writing, 

interview techniques, improving self-confidence.  

 

23



16. The offer would need to be a rolling programme that allows young people to start 

when it is right for them and not at a specific time during the calendar year.   

 

17. A strategic lead as outlined in the Statutory guidance for participation of young 

people in education, employment and training (EET) will allow this offer to move 

forward at pace as well as ensure a continuation of the offer is available to all who 

need it within BCP. 

 

Summary of financial implications 

18. Pupil Premium Grant (PPG) is allocated to the Virtual School and College for those 

young people in school years Reception – Year 11 inclusive.  The VSC does not 

receive PPG for young people in year 12 and 13 - only those pupils enrolled at a 

college are able to access the Bursary for Vulnerable Students. Therefore, those 

young people that are NEET do not have access to any additional funds to support 

them re-engaging with education, employment or training. 

 

19. The Virtual School and College PPG policy was amended in February 2021 to allow 

the VSC Head teacher discretion to use some PPG for those young people in years 

12 and 13 both to support with re-integration to education, employment and training 

for NEETs and also to prevent young people from becoming NEET. 

 
20. To date the Virtual School and College has used PPG for the following: 

 
a) The purchase of laptops and dongles to ensure that all year 12 and 13 

young people can access online learning during the pandemic. 

b) Tuition both online and face to face to give young people the opportunity to 
gain relevant qualifications so they are able to apply for college courses 
and also to give them experience of learning, especially for those who have 
not engaged in learning for a significant amount of time and are particularly 
anxious about it. 

21. Funding for resources to allow confidence building and raising of self esteem 

will need to be factored into the planning of the local NEET offer. 

 

 

 

 

Summary of legal implications   

22. None. 

 

Summary of public health implications   

23. Improvements in the offer to NEET young people and young adults will make a 

contribution to improved public health as this directly correlates with improved life 

chances.  

  

Summary of equality implications   

24



24. Minority groups are generally over-represented in the NEET cohort of young people 

and young adults. An improved NEET offer will make a contribution to reducing 

educational and employment inequalities 

 

Summary of risk assessment   

25. An improved NEET offer and take-up will reduce the broad set of risks faced by 
young people and young adults who are disengaged from education, employment 
and training. These risks increase from early childhood onwards so their mitigation is 
vital. 

Background papers 

 

None 

Appendices   

  

There are no appendices to this report.  

 

25



This page is intentionally left blank

26



CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Improvement Journey – update 

Meeting date  29 March 2021 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  Sufficient improvements in Children’s Services have been made in 
the last few months to be able to confirm an upwards trajectory. 
This has been confirmed in audits (now called practice reviews) 
which demonstrate a clear month-on-month improvement both in 
performance and in the quality of practice. These practice reviews 
have been carried out independently of line management to ensure 
‘we are not marking our own homework’. Having said that, the pace 
of improvement needs to quicken in some delivery areas, as set out 
in this report’s ‘Challenges Ahead’ section. 

 

Recommendations That Members note and scrutinise this update and suggest 
further improvements as this is a crucial improvement 
programme to get right 

 

Reason for 
recommendations 

Request by the Chair for an update on the progress of the Action 
Plan following the Ofsted ‘focused visit’ in October 2020 

 

 

  

27

Agenda Item 8



Portfolio Holder(s):  Councillor Mike White, Lead Member for Children and Families   

Corporate Director  Elaine Redding – Corporate Director – Children’s Services   

Report Authors Elaine Redding, Corporate Director of Children’s Services and 
Anthony Douglas CBE, DfE Improvement Adviser for BCP 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Recommendation/Decision/Update and Information 
Title:  

  Background 
 

1. In October 2020, Ofsted carried out a ‘focused visit’ to BCP and were extremely 

concerned about the level of service being provided to the most vulnerable children and 

young people living in the BCP area. The published letter following this visit led to a 15-

point action plan for service improvement which was submitted to an earlier meeting of 

this committee. 

 
2. Ofsted set out two areas for priority action: 

 

 The arrangements for management oversight and quality assurance of social work 

practice 

 The quality of practice, including the application of thresholds, the quality of 

assessments, the actions taken at the pre-proceedings stage of the Public Law 

Outline (known as the PLO) and the decision-making for permanence 

  Improvements in those areas for priority action  

3. Ofsted expect local authorities to take ‘swift and decisive action’ when they identify 

such priorities. By swift, they mean a few months at most. We are pleased to report 

significant progress in these two areas, with the following headlines: 

 
a) Far higher levels of oversight of individual cases and of whole services have been 

confirmed for all services. This includes supervisors recording formal advice notes 

on case files and a much greater level of performance management of below-par 

work. As a consequence, audits (practice reviews) are showing a month-on-month 

increase in work graded ‘requires improvement’ and ‘good’ and a parallel 

decrease in work graded as ‘inadequate’. 

b) Thresholds are clearer. For example, a concern of Ofsted’s was that too many 

high-risk cases were being held in Early Help whereas they should be held within 

the Children’s Social Care Service. We accepted that criticism and challenge and 

significantly, very few cases being closed in Early Help at the moment need to be 

stepped up to social care. We are sure Ofsted would find the current situation 

much improved on what they saw 6 months ago. 

28



c) Public Law Outline cases are receiving daily attention from the new Case 

Progression Manager, which is always a crucial role in this area of work but one 

that BCP only brought in recently. Courts are feeding back positively about this 

stronger focus 

d) All children now have permanence plans. They are being recorded and tracked on 

a new Permanence Tracker and intensive work is in hand to now improve the 

quality of those plans  

e) A new ‘Edge of Care Panel’ is organising intensive support to a number of children 

and young people who would have undoubtedly come into care 6 months ago but 

who have been helped to remain at home for good reason. The number of children 

in care has fallen to 446 which is a 9% reduction on the same period last year. This 

is a positive development. No child is being left in an unsafe situation. 

The timeline for improvement 

4. Below is the timeline for improvement so Members can see where we have come from 

and where we are now: 

 
a) Serious and significant weaknesses in the service came to light last summer (2020) 
b) Remedial action started immediately and continues 
c) An Ofsted visit in October 2020 confirmed the weaknesses – the position was worse 

than at the time of their previous ‘focused visit’ in November 2019 
d) Action plans were developed and consolidated (late 2020 until January 2021) 
e) The single overarching action plan is now being intensively driven forward and 

monitored through regular ‘Holding to Account meetings’ 
f) Six weekly meetings of the Childrens Services Improvement Board take place to 

oversee improvements 
g) Actions not completed by the summer (2021) will be rolled forward into the delivery 

programme of the BCP Children and Young Peoples Plan for 2021-24 – some 
changes need time to embed 

 

More detail about the improvements made 
 

5. In this section, more detail is given about some of the major improvements being made. 
Whilst this is only a sample, it conveys how wide-reaching the improvement work has 
now become. 

 
 

a) All services are showing improvement, either with hard performance data or the 
building blocks being put in place for future service improvements 

b) Improvements in the weakest services correlate directly with the appointment of new 
interim managers who are highly experienced in running the services in question 

c) Performance is being regularly monitored in monthly performance surgeries 
d) Step changes in performance can be seen in the multi-agency safeguarding hub (the 

MASH (see below): in court work and permanence planning for children in care or on 
the edge of care; and in the timeliness of assessments 

e) 8 senior Children’s Services Managers are receiving additional support from 
Hampshire County Council, an ‘outstanding’ local authority, aiming to prepare them 
to be BCP’s senior leaders in the future when the interim managers go 

29



f) The council has invested heavily in Children’s Services next year and there is a 
cross-party political drive to improve. This is a vital building block 

g) Auditing (practice reviews) shows an increasing number of ‘good’ and ‘requires 
improvement’ grades and a decline in work rated ‘inadequate. Auditing is objective to 
avoid any concerns CS is marking its own homework 

h) Many small specialist teams have reached a ‘good’ level already and some have 
probably always been at that level 

i) A partnership with Gloucestershire County Council is being put in place for support 
with the development of a Social Work Academy for BCP using a learning hub 
model. Gloucestershire set their own Academy up in the last year and can help BCP 
with the fastest and most effective way to start ours up. One innovation connected 
with this is the establishment of an academic residency in Children’s Services in 
which a lecturer from the Bournemouth University School of Social Work will be 
based in our Assessment Service, focusing on strengthening our understanding (and 
the University’s) of the voice of the child in neglect referrals. Over time, we believe 
this will be another building block for service improvement. 

 

Examples of this improvement journey in 2 front-line services  

MASH and the Out of Hours Service  

 

 

 

 

 

 

30



 

Assessment Service 

 

The challenges ahead 
 

6. In any report of this nature, there is a danger of over-optimism, as services like child 

protection are difficult to transform overnight. A small but significant number of 

challenges remain which are set out below. 

 
a) Recruitment of sufficient new permanent staff is proving difficult, despite high profile 

campaigning, though the ratio of permanent to interim or locum staff is improving 
b) The pace of change in some key areas of the action planned needs to quicken – day 

to day transformation capacity needs to be increased 
c) There is insufficient evidence that the changes made are being translated into 

improvements in the lived experience of vulnerable children, young people and their 
families, though some feedback is promising enough to allow cautious optimism 

d) The amount of change being driven through is challenging in itself coming at the 
same time as pandemic-related work 

e) Significant spikes in demand are expected this year, for example in domestic abuse 
and in mental health.  

 

Conclusion 

 

7. We are confident about the improvements made so far and we are in no doubt that 
even more progress will be made in the next 6 months as the building blocks we 
have put in place will translate into improved performance and quality on the 
ground - where it counts. 

31



 

 

Summary of financial implications 

 

8. None. 

   

Summary of legal implications   

9. None. 

 

Summary of public health implications   

10. None  

  

Summary of equality implications   

11. None 

 

Summary of risk assessment   

12. None 

Background papers 

 

13. None 

Appendices   

  

14. There are no appendices to this report.  

 

32



Forward Plan – BCP Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

Updated  17 3 21 

The following forward plan items are suggested as early priorities to the Children’s Services O&S Committee by the Chairman and 

Vice Chairman, following consultation with officers.   

 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

Information only reports to be circulated  

 

1.  
Bournemouth, 
Christchurch and Poole 
Council Children’s 
Services Complaints 
and Representations 
Annual Report 2019 - 
2020 

Item for information to be 
circulated to the 
Committee. 

Item for information to be 
circulated to the 
Committee. 

Any queries to be emailed 
to the Chair and 
Democratic Services. 

Neil Goddard - 
Service Director, 
Quality and 
Commissioning, 
Children’s 
Services 

Circulated on 17 
March 2020. 

23 March 2021 

 

2.  
Review from the 
Members of Youth 
Parliament 

To enable the Committee to 
receive an update on the 
work of the MYPs 

A Report presented in the 
way the MYPs feel most 
appropriate. 

Members of 
Youth Parliament  

Annual Update 
Report. 

3.  
Report on Children not 
in Education, 
Employment and 
Training 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

 

Committee Report 
Kelly Twitchen  
Head Teacher  

Virtual School 

Inclusion and 
Family Services 
Children’s 
Services 

Report requested by 
the Committee with 
the addition of details 
of how Pupil 
Premium spent by 
Cllr Dunlop 

33

A
genda Item

 11



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

To include details on how 
the Pupil Premium is 
being spent 

 

4.  
Ofsted Outcome – focus 
on children in school 
update 

To focus on the education 
arrangements for 
vulnerable pupils during 
Covid 

Powerpoint presentation? 
Anthony Douglas, 
Chair, C&YPPB 
and Elaine 
Redding, Interim 
Corporate 
Director, 
Children’s 
Services 

Request from Interim 
Corporate Director, 
Children’s Services 
to take form of 
briefing 
note/Powerpoint 
presentation 

5.  
Covid Impact  To enable the Committee to 

maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Committee Report 
Elaine Redding, 
Interim Corporate 
Director, 
Children’s 
Services 

Request from Elaine 
to defer until 
roadmap is 
underway by email 
on 4/3/21 

Information Only Reports to be circulated 

 

6.  
BCP Schools and 
Providers Preparation 
for Return to Wider 
Opening from March 8th 
2021 

Item for information to be 
circulated to the 
Committee. Any issues 
arising from this to be 
considered further 

Information circulated to 
Committee Members 

 

Elaine Redding, 
Interim Corporate 
Director, 
Children’s 
Services 

Any queries to be 
emailed to the Chair 
and Democratic 
Services. 

7.  
Education Performance 
and Exams 2020 

Item for information to be 
circulated to the 
Committee. Any issues 
arising from this to be 
considered further 

Information circulated to 
Committee Members 

 

Elaine Redding, 
Interim Corporate 
Director, 
Children’s 
Services 

Any queries to be 
emailed to the Chair 
and Democratic 
Services. 

34



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

8.  
Send Strategy 2021 – 
2024 and Send 
Improvement Plan  

 

Item for information to be 
circulated to the 
Committee. Any issues 
arising from this to be 
considered further 

Information circulated to 
Committee Members 

 

Simon McKenzie, 
Service Director, 
Children and 
Young People’s 
Services 

Any queries to be 
emailed to the Chair 
and Democratic 
Services. 

 

8 June 2021 

 

9.  
CAMHS Transformation 
Update 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Committee Report and 
presentation 

Elaine Hurll, 
Dorset Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group  

 

10.  
Youth Offending Service 
Youth Justice Plan for 
2021/22 

To enable the Committee to 
consider before approval at 
Cabinet 

Committee Report  David Webb, 
YOS Service 
Manager 

 

11.  
Ofsted Outcome – 
Improvement Plan – 
Note - replacing the Self 
Assessment  

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Committee Report 
Anthony Douglas, 
Chair, C&YPPB 
and Elaine 
Redding, Interim 
Corporate 
Director, 
Children’s 
Services 

 

12.  
Covid Impact 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Committee Report 
Elaine Redding, 
Interim Corporate 
Director, 
Children’s 
Services 

 

35



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

13.  
Pupil Premium and child 
poverty 

To enable the Committee to 
consider the impact of child 
poverty and the associated 
impact of pupil premium 
funding, possibly to include 
impact of children’s centre 
funding and youth provision 
funding on child poverty. 

Committee Report  
TBC Requested at Work 

Programming 
session by 
Committee Members 

14.  
SEND Improvement 
Journey – Update 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Committee Report  
Simon McKenzie, 
Service Director, 
Children and 
Young People’s 
Services 

 

 

27 July 2021 

 

15.  
Ofsted Improvement 
Plan Progress Report   

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Committee Report Anthony Douglas, 
Chair, C&YPPB 
and Elaine 
Redding, Interim 
Corporate 
Director, 
Children’s 
Services 

Requested as 
recurring Agenda 
Items 

16.  
Covid Recovery  To enable the Committee to 

maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Committee Report Elaine Redding, 
Interim Corporate 
Director, 
Children’s 
Services 

Requested as 
recurring Agenda 
Items 

36



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

17.  
Partnership Academy 
development – Social 
Work initiative 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

 

Committee Report Brian Relph, 

Interim Service 
Director – 
CYPSC & Rachel 
Gravett, 
Children’s 
Commissioner 

Delayed at the 
request of CS 
Officers as was felt 
further work needed 
to be undertaken 

18.  
Safeguarding 
Arrangements 

To enable the Committee to 
consider prior to 
recommendation to 
Cabinet. Awaiting date 
confirmation from CCG 

Committee Report  
Anthony Douglas, 
Chair, C&YPPB 
and Debra Jones, 
Children’s 
Commissioning 
Manager – 
Partnerships and 
Development 
(interim)  

Delayed due to 
Cabinet 
consideration  

21 September 2021 

 

19.  
Ofsted Improvement 
Plan Progress Update 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Committee Report Anthony Douglas, 
Chair, C&YPPB 
and Elaine 
Redding, Interim 
Corporate 
Director, 
Children’s 
Services 

Requested as 
recurring Agenda 
Items 

20.  
Covid Recovery To enable the Committee to 

maintain oversight of this 
Committee Report Elaine Redding, 

Interim Corporate 
Director, 

Requested as 
recurring Agenda 
Items 

37



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Children’s 
Services 

 

 

23 November 2021 

 

21.  
Ofsted Improvement 
Plan Progress Update 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Committee Report Anthony Douglas, 
Chair, C&YPPB 
and Elaine 
Redding, Interim 
Corporate 
Director, 
Children’s 
Services 

Requested as 
recurring Agenda 
Items 

22.  
Covid Recovery To enable the Committee to 

maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Committee Report Elaine Redding, 
Interim Director, 
Children’s 
Services 

Requested as 
recurring Agenda 
Items 

DATE to be allocated 

 

23.  
Bournemouth Learning 
Centre Conversion to 
Special School Campus 
- Capital budget 

To consider and make any 
recommendations prior to 
approval at Cabinet.  

Committee Report Elaine Redding, 
Interim Corporate 
Director, 
Children’s 
Services 

Removed from 
February 2021 
agenda as delayed 
for Cabinet 

38



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

24.  
Harmonisation Report 

To provide the Committee 
with an overview  

Committee Report Lucy Eldred, HR Delayed by CS 
Officers as further 
work was required 

 

25.  
Report on Children in 
Care 

To include details of any 
protected characteristics 
detailed within the 
Equalities Act 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

 

Committee Report Brian Relph, 
Interim Service 
Director, 
Children’s and 
Young People’s 
Social Care  

Delayed at the 
request of CS 
Officers due to 
capacity within 
Children’s Services 
and the need to 
prioritise 

26.  
Child Exploitation 

To include an update on 
County Lines and knife 
crime. 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

 

Committee Report – all 
Member briefing taking 
place 2 March - TBC 

Lynn McIntosh, 
Strategic Lead 
Complex 
Safeguarding and 
Quality 
Assurance 

 

 

Information Briefing – date to be arranged  - to be parked for present review after Feb 

 

27.  
 
School Inclusion and 
Exclusion  

To consider the rate of 
exclusions at secondary 
schools within the BCP 
area and the underlying 
reasons for the exclusion 
rates. To investigate the 
actions that the Council are 
able to take in this matter 

Inquiry session with 
headteachers / school 
representatives / alternative 
provision / LA role 

Committee Report  

Elaine Redding, 
Interim Corporate 
Director, 
Children’s 
Services and 
Director of 
Education (TBC) 

 

39



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

and the outcome that they 
are delivering. 

28.  
Post-16 Provision – to 
include apprenticeship 
programme and provision 
for those without good 
GCSE 
 
 

 Informal Briefing – Cllr 
Northover? 

Kelly Twitchen  
Head Teacher  

Virtual School 

Inclusion and 
Family Services 
Children’s 
Services 

 

 

Commissioned Work 

Work commissioned by the Committee (for example task and finish groups and working groups) is listed below: 

Note – to provide sufficient resource for effective scrutiny, one item of commissioned work will run at a time. Further 
commissioned work can commence upon completion of previous work. 

  
Visit to MASH 

(to be arranged when 
restrictions allow) 

To enable Committee 
Members to gain insight 
into front line services 

Shadowing Brian Relph, 
Interim Service 
Director, 
Children’s and 
Young People’s 
Social Care  

 

  
School Exclusion Rates 

Committee to agree 
enquiry session. 

 

  TBC  

Update Items 

40



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

The following items of information have been requested as updates to the Committee. 

The Committee may wish to receive these in an alternative to format to Committee updates (e.g. by emailed briefing note outside 
of the Committee) to reserve capacity in Committee meetings for items of value-added scrutiny. 

  
BCP Children’s Services 
Self-Assessment 

 

TO BE REPLACED WITH 
THE OFSTED ACTION 
PLAN 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

To be received quarterly by 
email and to receive a 
Committee Report bi-
annually. 

To be considered at 
September Meeting 

TBC  

  
Children in Care  

To receive updated 
information at regular 
intervals on this matter, 
including how the council 
has effected positive 
change in relation to these 
figures. 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

To be received quarterly.   

 

Brian Relph, 
Interim Service 
Director, 
Children’s and 
Young People’s 
Social Care  

 

  
Child Exploitation 

To receive updated 
information at regular 
intervals on this matter, 
including how the council 
has effected positive 
change in relation to these 
figures. 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

To be received quarterly.   

Considered in September 
2020, an all Member 
briefing scheduled for 2 
March 2021  

Lynn McIntosh, 
Strategic Lead 
Complex 
Safeguarding and 
Quality 
Assurance 

 

 

41



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny 
be done? 
 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

  
Assurance of the impact 
of the Pan-Dorset Youth 
Offending Services 
Board 

To include a snapshot 
updates of entrance 
numbers to the Youth 
Offending Services. 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Data to be received six 
monthly. 

 

David Webb, 
Youth Offending 
Service 

 

  
Key Performance 
Indicators (KPIs) 

To receive KPIs to include 
updates on CMOEs and 
NEETs 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

To be received quarterly.   

 

TBC  

 

42


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	4a Action Sheet
	6 BCP 's Members of Youth Parliament Summary Report
	7 Report on Children not in education, employment and training to include details on how the Pupil Premium is being spent
	8 Children's Services Improvement Journey – update
	11 Forward Plan

